UNITED
NATIONS A

Di str.
GENERAL

XN
\\/‘“ 1}\} General Assembly

=<

A/ CN. 9/ SR. 602
3 April 1997

ORI G NAL: ENGLI SH

UNI TED NATI ONS COWM SSI ON ON | NTERNATI ONAL TRADE LAW
Twenty-ni nth session
SUMVARY RECORD ( PARTI AL)* OF THE 602nd MEETI NG
Hel d at Headquarters, New York,
on Monday, 10 June 1996, at 3 p.m

Chai r man; Ms. PIAGE de VANGCSSI (Argentina)

CONTENTS

ELECTRONI C DATA | NTERCHANGE: DRAFT MODEL LAW POSSI BLE FUTURE WORK ( conti nued)

* No sunmary record was prepared for the rest of the neeting.

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be subnmitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a menmorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Chief, Oficial Records Editing Section, Ofice of Conference and Support
Services, room DC2-794, 2 United Nations Pl aza.

Any corrections to the records of the meetings of this session will be
consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued shortly after the end of
t he session.

96- 80794 (E) /...



A/ CN. 9/ SR 602
Engl i sh
Page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.15 p.m

ELECTRONI C DATA | NTERCHANGE: DRAFT MODEL LAW POSSI BLE FUTURE WORK ( conti nued)
(A/50/17; A/ CN. 9/ 421 and 426)

1. The CHAIRMAN said that if she heard no objection, she would take it that

t he Conmi ssion agreed to entrust the publication of the Guide to Enactnent of
the UNCI TRAL Model Law on Legal Aspects of Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) and
Rel at ed Means of Communication to the secretariat, which would be authorized to
make changes as suggested by the Commission. |In that way, it would be possible
to publish the Guide together with the Mdel Law.

2. It was so deci ded.

Possible future work (continued)

3. The CHAI RVAN said there was a consensus that the Conmi ssion shoul d continue
to accept and consider proposals for future work, but that such proposals would
not be considered to be a high priority.

4. M. SANDOVAL LOPEZ (Chile) said that the Conmi ssion should not consider any
new topics in the area of maritime transport for which nunerous conventions

al ready existed. H's country had joined the international effort at

har nmoni zati on by adopting uniformlegislation such as the Hanburg Rules. If it
was deci ded, sone del egati ons had proposed, that the Comm ssion woul d consi der
out si de bodi es' concerns relating to new aspects of maritime law, his del egation
strongly believed that the topic of liability in maritime transport should be
excluded, since it was already covered by the Hanburg Rul es and The Hague
regime. By establishing another reginme in the area of liability, the Comm ssion
woul d be underm ning current efforts at harnoni zation

5. M. BURMAN (United States of America) introduced his del egation's proposa
regarding future work on electronic cormerce. Froma review of the work done by
the Working G oup on Electronic Data Interchange (ED) and di scussions with
conmmer ci al sector groups and governnment agencies in a nunber of countries, two
maj or topics of concern had energed: digital signatures and el ectronic conmerce
contract and performance. Hi s del egation recomended that the secretariat
shoul d be authorized to produce a prelimnary study on each topic, to be

consi dered by the Wrking Goup in 1997. The Wrking G oup would then make
recomendat i ons whi ch woul d be considered by the Comm ssion at its thirtieth
session in order to determ ne the course of future work.

6. International rules on digital signatures could be the key to further
progress in electronic commerce. |In recent nonths, many countries had begun to
devel op | aws regarding digital signatures to provide standards by which a renpte
party coul d sign a docurment through conputer neans and have sonme reasonabl e
comerci al assurance of the signature's acceptability. The Conm ssion had the
uni que opportunity to set international |egal norns to guide the growth of

el ectronic commerce. It would be far nmore difficult to unravel enbedded

di fferences between national laws in the future.



A/ CN. 9/ SR 602
Engl i sh
Page 3

7. Moreover, in the case of electronic and conputer-based comuni cati ons and
transacti ons, many |egal issues were no |onger covered under contract or
copyright law. For exanple, where data nessages and the sale of products which
consi sted of electronic data were concerned, it was no |onger clear what was
neant by the terns "performance" or "delivery" when those products were taken
off the Internet. There again, the Comm ssion could take the lead in providing
the legal infrastructure for trade and comerce

8. Lastly, his delegation wi shed to propose a third topic for future work

whi ch was based on a recomendati on of the Wrking Party on Facilitation of
International Trade Procedures (WP.4) of the Econom ¢ Comm ssion for Europe,

whi ch had identified inpedinents to electronic comerce arising from"witings"
and ot her such requirenments. WP.4 had invited the Conmi ssion to assess the
feasibility of undertaking corrective work in that area. The Commi ssion could
consi der whether it could take any appropriate action after the preparation of a
secretariat study.

9. Ms. BOSS (United States of Anerica) said that the two main topics for
future work proposed by her del egation had two essential characteristics which
it believed should guide the Conm ssion's future work in the field of EDI. Both
topics dealt with areas where uniformty in | aw was crucial to the devel opnent
of comrerce and both were directly related to the Mddel Law. A number of
jurisdictions, nationally and internationally, were beginning to consider the
adoption of legislation that would determ ne the circunstances under which
digital signatures would be recognized in conmercial practice and had, in sone
i nstances, initiated systens for certifying the authenticity of those
signatures. It was vital that the applicable rules should be uniformlest they
becone a barrier to international and national trade.

10. In the draft Mdel Law, the Conmi ssion had considered the extent to which
data nmessages would conmply with writing and signature requirements. Thus, the
area of digital signatures was integrally related to the Model Law. Wile the
Model Law had basic rules regarding the authenticity of nmessages and contract
formation, those rules did not fully address the type of transactions that were
currently being undertaken in an electronic environnent. There existed a body
of laws that governed the sal e of goods, but there was no body of |aw anywhere,
that dealt with such transactions as the licensing or purchase of software or
with contracts granting access to information or data in an electronic

envi ronnent .

11. The Conmi ssion still had to determ ne what the final work product in that
area woul d be, what specific topics would be treated under either of the
proposal s and how the various issues would be handl ed. That was why her

del egation had requested the secretariat to conduct a prelimnary study of each
topi ¢ which could then be discussed by the Wrking G oup before being submtted
to the Conmi ssion.

12. M. STURLESE (France) said that before making a decision on future work,

t he Conmi ssion should decide if it wanted to continue working on EDI or on

bui | d-operate-transfer (BOT) projects, since it did not have the resources to
work on both topics sinmultaneously. |[If the Comm ssion decided to continue

wor ki ng on EDI, his delegation did not consider digital signatures to be a topic

/...



A/ CN. 9/ SR 602
Engl i sh
Page 4

of fundamental concern at present. The Comm ssion should continue the work it
had begun on the possible preparation of a code of conduct for third-party
service providers which provided the interface between users in an electronic
envi ronnent .

13. M. HERRMANN (Secretary of the Conm ssion) said that the Wrking G oup on
El ectronic Data Interchange was reserved for EDI matters, subject to the

Conmi ssion' s deci sion and possi ble changes. As far as BOT was concerned, a
substantive discussion could be held thereon at the next session of the
Conmi ssi on.

14. M. SORIEUL (International Trade Law Branch) said that the Conm ssion
shoul d give very clear instructions to the secretariat concerning the scope of
the studies it wished to have carried out because they involved fields in which
there was very little literature available. The secretariat would have to rely
heavily on the assistance of del egations. The Wrking G oup should not have to
waste tine on | engthy debates on the exact scope of its nmandate.

15. M. BURMAN (United States of America) said that his del egation had done its
best to confine its proposals to practical topics and to nodify them where
necessary. It assumed that any inportant topic that was sel ected for

consi derati on woul d of necessity involve third-party service providers, which
were constantly growing in nunber and variety. Hi s delegation had cone to a
sim lar conclusion on the subject of electronic registries, which was likely to
beconme an increasingly common topic of discussion. Indeed, it now appeared nore
practical to take up both electronic registries and third-party service
providers in the context of individual topics such as digital signatures and

el ectroni ¢ contract and performance rules rather than as generic topics in

t hensel ves.

16. M. Wn-Kyong KIM (Observer for the Republic of Korea) said that the

Conmi ssion should continue its consideration of electronic commerce so that the
Model Law coul d beconme a useful tool for the international conmunity. Wth
regard to the specific topics to be given priority, he found the United States
proposal acceptabl e.

17. M. RENGER (Germany) said that because of the grow ng inportance of
electronic interaction in all fields, including international trade, the problem
of digital signatures went far beyond commerce. It was related to a host of
laws, including international civil law and admnistrative law as well. [|ndeed,
he was not sure whether UNCI TRAL was the appropriate body to discuss and find an
internationally acceptable solution to the problemof digital signatures. H's
del egation did not believe that a role could be found for digital signatures
which applied to international trade |law treaties. One of the problens of the
electronics field was the rapidity of its devel opnent. Delegations to UNCH TRAL,
whi ch represented national Governnents, should think about the overall welfare
of their countries and not focus solely on the interests of the el ectronics

i ndustry, which was profit-driven

18. Ms. SABO (Observer for Canada) said that while she agreed with the
representative of France on the need to consider all priorities, she disagreed
with himas far as EDI priorities were concerned. She supported the United



A/ CN. 9/ SR 602
Engl i sh
Page 5

States proposal to undertake work in the areas of digital signatures and
contract performance rules in electronic comerce. However, she was concer ned
that the Conm ssion would be asking the secretariat to undertake too nuch.

19. M. ABASCAL (Mexico) said that he woul d prefer the Comm ssion to continue
wor ki ng on EDI and to take advantage of the nomentum al ready generated by the
Working Group to devel op the Mbdel Law further. He suggested that the Wrking
G oup should be mandated to begin formulating a new set of rules or principles
after exam ning and approving sonme of the topics subnmitted to it by the
secretari at.

20. Ms. CRAGGS (United Kingdon) said that in her view, digital signature
standards and the knowing with certainty the identity of the party one was
dealing with were the absol ute bedrock of electronic commerce. Very closely
linked to that was the issue of performance rules. For that reason, her

del egation supported the United States proposal that the Wirking G oup should
give top priority to work first on digital signatures followed closely by
contract and performance rul es.

21. M. I1LLESCAS (Spain) said it was significant that once the Conm ssion
conpleted its current work on EDI it planned to change the title of the Mde
Law so that it referred to electronic comrerce. The thorough understandi ng of
that field acquired by the Commi ssion and the Wrking Goup on EDI over the
previous five years should be exploited to the fullest. To the extent that
resources allowed, a working group that dealt with those topics should continue
to exist.

22. A good starting point for the work of the Wrking Goup was digita
signature; the expression of the will to negotiate with proper security and
proper assurances that the data nessage corresponded to a will to negotiate.
Equal |y inmportant were third-party interventions in the passage of the

el ectroni c nessage, the rules relating to performance in the context of

el ectronically concluded contracts and the question of inclusion by reference.
I ndeed, the latter aspect was a serious problemin trade transacted on paper
when such busi ness becane el ectronic the probl em becane even nore acute. The
i ssue of electronic registries also needed to be tackl ed.

The neeting was suspended at 4.40 p.m and resuned at 5.15 p. m

23. M. SORIEUL (International Trade Law Branch) said that the secretariat had
some concerns about the proposed study on rules on digital signatures.

Article 6 of the Model Law had deliberately been drafted in very general terns
in order to accommpdate the possibility of technol ogi cal change. Very few
legislations in the world had detailed rules on digital signatures. The

Conmi ssion woul d therefore need to decide which field it wanted the secretari at
to study and woul d need to provide the essential docunentation, since few | ega
publications were available in the field.

24. M. CHANDLER (United States of Anerica) said that four states in the United
States of America had passed | aws on digital signatures, and approxi mately

14 others were considering the adoption of such | aws. Relevant materials could
be furnished to the secretariat. |ssues were energing which had | ega



A/ CN. 9/ SR 602
Engl i sh
Page 6

implications and, with the proliferation of digital signature devices, the need
for regul ati on woul d becone apparent.

25. M. ABASCAL (Mexico) said that the name of the Wrking Goup on Electronic
Data I nterchange should be changed in line with the newtitle of the Mdel Law.

26. M. FARIDI ARAGH (Islamc Republic of Iran) said that there m ght not be
enough material to warrant a study on the rules on digital signatures. H's

del egation woul d prefer to concentrate on incorporation by reference and third-
party informati on and service providers.

27. M. STURLESE (France) said that everyone agreed it was inportant for the
work on el ectronic conmerce to continue. However, he had reservations about
havi ng the Working Goup study the rules on digital signatures because the
mandat e was not very specific; noreover working groups were expensive, both for
the United Nations and for Governments. Unless the Wrking Goup had a clear
and precise objective, it would waste tinme deciding what it should be

di scussing. |In fact, the Wrking Goup itself, in paragraphs 110 and 111 of its
report (A/CN. 9/421), had expressed doubts as to whether it would be realistic to
focus exclusively on digital signatures.

28. M. BGSS (United States of America) said that it was difficult to specify a
preci se mandate for the Wrking Goup and at the same time give it enough

di scretion to determ ne what needed to be done. dearly, it would be

i nappropriate for the Wrking Goup to fornulate any technical requirenments or
to dictate the use of any specific technol ogies; the scope of the topic nust be
broad enough to enconpass energi ng technol ogi es. Sone specific |egal issues
that m ght be considered by the Wrking Goup were the | egal basis supporting
the certification processes of certifying authorities; rules and guidelines
associated with digital signatures; allocations of risk; responsibilities of
users in cases of fraud or error; and the role and liability of third-party
servi ce providers.

29. The CHAI RMAN said she took it that the Comm ssion accepted the proposa
that the secretariat should prepare a study on the rules on digital signatures
and a study on el ectronic conmerce contract and perfornmance rul es.

30. It was so deci ded.

The discussion covered in the sunmary record ended at 5.40 p. m




